ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 7, 2015
1:29 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Ma Costello, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Johnny Ellis

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Kevi n Meyer

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnent
Hei di Drygas, Comm ssioner

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

SENATE BILL NO. 76

"An Act relating to private actions and renedi es against real
estate licensees for |licensee relationships, disclosures, and
activity before January 1, 2005; and providing for an effective
date. "

- MOVED SB 76 OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 76

SHORT TI TLE: REAL ESTATE BROKERS; LI ABILITY
SPONSOR(s) : JUDI Cl ARY

03/ 18/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 15 (S) L&C, JUD

03/ 31/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 31/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 31/ 15 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2015



HEI DI DRYGAS, Comni ssioner designee

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnent ( DOLVD)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as conm ssioner designee for the
Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent .

GENEVI EVE WDJTUSI K, St af f

Senator McCuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supporting information for SB 76
on behal f of the sponsor.

JEFFREY PICKETT, retained counsel for +the Senate Judiciary
Commi ttee

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 76.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:29:56 PM

CHAIR M A COSTELLO call ed the Senate Labor and Comrerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:29 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Ellis, Gessel and Chair Costell o.

Confirmati on Hearing
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent

1: 30: 20 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO announced the first order of business would be a
confirmation hearing for Heidi Drygas as Commi ssioner of the
Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent (DOLWD). She noted
that this was the fifth and final hearing on governor
appoi ntments. She asked Comm ssioner designee Drygas to provide
openi ng remarks.

1:31:11 PM

HEI DI DRYGAS, Conm ssioner designee, Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent (DOLWD), said she is a lifelong Al aska.
She attended UAF and received a degree in history. She then
attended WIlanette University and received a |law degree in
2003. She noved to Anchorage in 2004 and worked as an insurance
defense attorney for a year before she was offered a position as
general counsel for the Alaska District Council of Laborers. She
held that position until she was appointed to this position on
Decenber 19, 2014. She said she's enjoying the work and is

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 7, 2015



inmpressed with the enployees. They are a dedicated group and
it's an honor to |l ead the departnent, she said.

1:32: 06 PM
SENATOR STEVENS j oi ned the conmmttee.

SENATOR ELLI S asked for an update on the job centers.

COWMM SSI ONER DRYGAS said DOLWD has been downsi zi ng the nunber of
job centers over the past several years because the federal
funding sunsets this year. However, the departnment recognizes
they are an inportant resource for communities and is working to
partner with regional entities and conmunities so that job
center services aren't entirely renmoved from | ocations. Both the
Eagle River and Miul doon job centers will remain open for FY2016
with reduced staffing; AVIEC will take over the responsibilities
of the job center in Seward; and the Cty of Barrow will assune
the job center services that the departnment has previously
provi ded. The ongoing effort is to ensure that if the departnent
doesn't offer the job center services, soneone in the area does.

1:38: 18 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL referenced the mnutes from a recent Al aska
Gasline Developnment Corporation (AGDC) board of directors
nmeeting and asked what decision points she had considered in
reaching a yes vote on the resolution [to study the cost to
expand the size of the ASAP pi peline].

COWMM SSI ONER DRYGAS expl ai ned that she wanted to ensure that the
resolution reflected the intent of the board regarding whether
or not to support expanding the capacity of the Alaska Stand
Alone Pipeline (ASAP). She said everyone agrees that the
priority is to develop AKLNG but it's inportant to have a
vi able, economc backup. The timng of the resolution was
i nportant because the technical team that has the expertise to
study the issue mght be disbanded. She posited that it was part
of due diligence to study the matter now rather than later tine.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the board was apprised of the estimated
cost of the study.

COWM SSI ONER DRYGAS answered no, but they were told that it

woul d be nore expensive to request the study after the technical
t eam had di shanded.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2015



SENATOR d ESSEL asked what preparations are being made for the
estimated 10, 000-15,000 jobs that would be created by the |arge
AKLNG pi pel i ne.

1:44:50 PM

COW SSI ONER DRYGAS said the current estimate is that between
8,000 and 9,000 workers will be needed to construct the AKLNG
pi peline and about 1,000 workers to mamintain it. The producers
have expressed interest in working with DOLWD on an integrated
| abor study | ooking at whether the state can neet the workforce
needs to build the project. She stressed that having a skilled
and ready workforce is a nunber one goal of the governor and one
of her primary goals as comm ssioner.

COMM SSI ONER DRYGAS said the new workforce devel opnent plan w il
draw from previous nodels and wll include input from
st akehol ders from industry and |abor as well as the Al aska
Wrkforce Investnent Board. The intent is to have a targeted
tinmeline to identify needs and to put systens in place to neet
t hose needs. She said the departnment has hit the ground running
to ensure that the systens are in place to develop a skilled
Al askan workforce that is ready to neet the needs of industry
when the AKLNG project is built. The situation was different
when the Trans Al aska Pipeline System in that the state didn't
have a trai ned and ready workf orce.

1:49: 02 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL highlighted the differences in the state between
the 1970s and now.

COW SSI ONER DRYGAS responded that she was in Al aska because her
fat her worked on TAPS.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked her thoughts on the confidentiality
agreenent concept for an AGDC board nenber.

COMWM SSI ONER DRYGAS explained that the admnistration was
concerned about transparency and ensuring that Al askans know at
each step what is happening wth their resource. That being
said, she was ready to work on and sign a confidentiality
agreenent that the adm nistration and AGC board nenbers agreed
to.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if she received an explanation of instate

consunption capacity and what would happen to the extra gas if
the small instate |ine was expanded.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2015



COWM SSI ONER DRYGAS acknowl edged that there would be chall enges
associated with marketing the gas in a neaningful way. She said
the admnistration and the AGDC board would |like to see the
AKLNG line conme to fruition, but if that fails this wuld be a
backup to provide gas to Al askans and anot her revenue stream for
years to cone.

SENATOR G ESSEL expressed appreciation for the answers and
hi ghlighted the concern that the snmaller pipeline is not an
i ntegrated project and has no export comnponent.

1:54: 47 PM
SENATOR STEVENS commented on the inportance of timng al
training and asked who will train the workforce.

COW SSIONER  DRYGAS replied the departnment will work wth
partners and regional training centers. Apprenticeship prograns
will also be increased. The timng of the training will be part
of the workforce developnent plan and wll depend on that
tinmeline. The nultiple systems will work together to neet the
different tinmefranes.

DOVW will have collaborative neetings wth the regional
training centers to work on career and technical education and
| ook at program needs. The departnent, the university and the
Depart ment of Education convened a taskforce to further devel op
a career and technical education (CTE) plan to elimnate

duplication and identify critical industries that need nore
trained workers. The focus is to enhance the oil and gas
wor kforce but they'll also ook at growi ng new industries. She

noted that DOLWD is working with the federal governnent to
submt an Anerican Apprenticeship grant application that could
bring in $2.5 nillion to $5 mllion for non-traditiona
apprenti ceshi ps.

SENATOR STEVENS reiterated the inportance of tineliness in
training a workforce and thanked Conm ssioner Drygas for her
efforts.

SENATOR COSTELLO asked Comm ssioner Drygas if she saw the AGDC
resolution for the first time on the sane day she voted on it.
She noted that M. Halford testified to the Senate Resources
Commttee that he hadn't seen it before the neeting.

COWM SSI ONER DRYGAS said she hadn't seen the resolution before
but had discussed the concept with another board nenber. She

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2015



wasn't surprised to see it but wanted to nmke sure it was
t hor oughl y di scussed and reflected the intent of the body.

CHAI R COSTELLO quoted Comnmi ssioner Drygas' comrents during the
3/ 15/ 15 AGC board neeting. "And | think 1'd feel confortable if
we took the tinme to make sure that if we vote on this, we give a
clear direction to staff in the resolution, not just necessarily
what's on the record.” She asked Comm ssioner Drygas if she
val ues getting conversations on the record because it seens that
a | ot of questions went unanswer ed.

2:02: 26 PM

COWM SSI ONER DRYGAS recalled there was discussion during the
meeti ng about what the board intended the staff to study, but
her feeling was that specific directions for the staff should be
included in the resolution. The ultimate decision was that the
staff had sufficient direction. She didn't recall off-record
conversations which are prohibited under the public neetings
I aw.

CHAI R COSTELLO advi sed Comm ssi oner Drygas to t hi nk
i ndependently and consider the effect of what the resolution is
comuni cating. She asked how she can justify spending noney on a
secondary plan when there's already a backup on the books that
everybody |i kes.

COWM SSI ONER DRYGAS clarified that there is no current intention
to expand the size of the Alaska Stand Al one Pipeline (ASAP)
The AGC board is looking to study whether that is a viable
option. That's never been done; it's only been |ooked at as a
smal l er dianeter |line. She said she doesn't take the cost of the
study lightly but as a board nenber and Comm ssioner she has a
fiduciary responsibility to the people of Alaska to |ook at the
option to see if it's economcally feasible. "Wiile we continue
with the study, hopefully AKLNG continues to progress,” she
sai d.

2:11: 06 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO expressed concern that the study to expand the
size of ASAP would put the larger pipe at risk. She urged
waiting a year to give AKLNG tine to nove to the next stage. She
pointed out that Senate Bill 138 was signed into law after 51
heari ngs and thorough discussion. That project will bring from
15,000 to 20,000 jobs and there's a duty to Alaskans to follow
the law which is laid out very clearly. AKLNG is the star player
but if it doesn't work out, ASAP is the backup.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2015



She expressed appreciation for the questions Conmm ssioner Drygas
asked during the AGDC Board neeting and encouraged her to view
herself as an independent nenber who can ask the [larger
guestions such as what are the board actions comunicating to
t he mar ket .

SENATOR G ESSEL underscored the inportance of waiting to see if
the producers and the state, as equal partners, can make this
| arge project economc. "W don't want to be trying to craft
sonmet hing now when we don't know what the fail points are for
this smaller backup,” she said.

2:15:48 PM

COW SSI ONER DRYGAS replied she appreciates the concerns but she
doesn't believe that there is tine to wait to look at the fail
points before |ooking at the options for the backup plan. She
continued to say:

Al aska needs a new revenue stream and we don't have
the time to wait. | think it is inportant to continue
both of these projects together, as they have been.
There has been a lot of collaboration and working
together. There's a lot of shared data involved that's
been really helpful and beneficial and ultimately I
think the board and the governor would like to see
t hese eventually nerge into one.

SENATOR G ESSEL pointed out that the tw projects have
fundanmental ly different goals. The ASAP |line was for instate use
and not considered for export, whereas the AKLNG has al ways been
an export line. She cautioned that making a policy change on the
instate line creates a conflict and a problem

CHAIR COSTELLO added that the AKLNG project has offtake
opportunities for instate gas.

2:18:54 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO found no further comrents and read the foll ow ng:

In accordance with AS 39.05.080 the Senate Labor and
Commer ce Comm ttee revi ewed t he foll ow ng and
recommends the appointnent to be forwarded to a joint
session for consideration.

2:19: 06 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO cal l ed an at ease to sign the paperwork.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2015



SB 76- REAL ESTATE BROKERS; LIABILITY

2:21.06 PM

CHAIR COSTELLO reconvened the neeting and announced the
consideration of SB 76. "An Act relating to private actions and
remedi es agai nst real estate i censees for i censee
rel ati onshi ps, disclosures, and activity before January 1, 2005;
and providing for an effective date." She noted that this was
t he second heari ng.

2:21:42 PM
GENEVI EVE WOJTUSI K, Staff, Senator MQ@uire, summarized that SB
76 addresses notification requirenents for real estate

transactions before January 1, 2005 when the |icensee represents
both the buyer and seller. The original statute did not specify
renedies if a real estate licensee violated its provisions and
had no tineline. In 2002 a lawsuit was brought and it becane a
class action suit in 2010. SB 76 broadens the |anguage in [AS
08.88.396(e)] to help with that suit.

During the previous hearing, Senator G essel asked what the |aw
said in 1998 regarding dual representation. At that time, AS
08.88.396(c) said: "A person |icensed under this chapter nay act
as an agent for both the prospective seller and a prospective
buyer of real estate, only after the licensee infornms both the
seller and the buyer of the dual agency and receives witten
consent to the dual agency from both principals.” The statute
did not include a tineline for obtaining the witten consent to
t he dual representation.

2:24.04 PM

CHAIR COSTELLO recalled previous testinony that prospective
honmeowners were nmaking on the spot offers after viewng the
properties. As a result, a situation came up where a buyer felt
he/ she made an offer w thout receiving conmmunication from the
agent about their dual representation.

M5. WOJTUSIK confirmed that two people felt that they were not
informed that the real estate I|icensee represented both the
buyer and seller. They brought |egal action in 2002.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked why the new |anguage on page 1, line 6,
striking the term "for" and inserting "arising out of" is a
clarification.

MS5. WOJTUSI K deferred to M. Pickett.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2015



2:25: 34 PM

JEFFREY PICKETT, retained counsel for the Senate Judiciary
Commttee, explained that the term "arising out of" is a nore
broadly interpreted term by Al aska courts and would cover both
common law and statutory actions. This would clarify the
| egislature's intent in 2003 when it limted danmages to actual
damages for violations of the dual agency notice requirenent.

CHAIR COSTELLO asked if this <change mght bring consuner
protection concerns.

MR. PICKETT replied he has heard nothing on the consuner
advocate side that would indicate concern with this change. He
expl ained that the change is focused on the damages a consuner
is entitled to if the dual representation was not properly
di scl osed. Should forfeiture be allowed as a renmedy for failure
to properly disclose, sone 3,500 transactions that took place
during this tinmefrane would be at risk. That would gravely
damage the entire industry.

2:28: 55 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO asked how the bill clarifies the will of the
| egi sl ature in 2003.

MR. PICKETT replied the will of the legislature is determ ned by
courts after a review of the legislative history. This includes
testinmony, witten conments and anything put on the record. H's
understanding is that the legislature in 2003 was trying to
clarify the sane thing that SB 76 seeks to clarify. That is that
permtting forfeiture as a renedy for violations of the dual
agency provisions would have a very disruptive inpact on the
real estate industry.

CHAIR COSTELLO asked Senator Ellis if he had supplenenta
i nformati on.

SENATOR ELLI S replied the previous comments reflect his nenory.

2:30: 53 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked why the bill is retroactive [to January 1,
1991], if anyone would be harned by the retroactivity and how

t hey woul d be har ned.

MR. PICKETT explained that the bill is necessarily retroactive
so it applies to cases and clains brought since the 1998
anmendnent made di sclosure of dual agency a requirenent. The bil

makes it clear to the courts that the intent of the legislature

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2015



in 2003 was that only actual danages would be awarded to a
consuner if provisions of the dual agency requirenment were
vi ol at ed.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if there are ongoing court cases to which
this would apply and if it would provide a definitive answer for
any court deci sions.

MR, PICKETT confirmed that a case has been ongoing since 2010
could be affected, and others could be brought based on
transacti ons between 1998 and 2003. He said the anbiguity in the
law is related to whether the l|imtation to actual danmages
applies to comon law actions. It clearly applies to statutory
actions. The pending case could be affected because the bil
would require the courts to apply the Ilimtation to actual
damages in any case arising out of the failure to disclose dua
agency representation.

2:34:23 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO asked how to rationalize a retroactive effective
date when one legislature is not able to bind another
| egi sl ature.

MR. PICKETT explained that retroactivity is a permtted power of
a sitting legislature. One legislature may not bind a future
| egislature, but it is permssible for a legislature to change
what an earlier |egislature has done.

SENATOR STEVENS asked for an explanation of actual danmages as
opposed to other types.

MR. PICKETT explained that actual damges are out-of-pocket
| osses a buyer or seller mght have suffered as a result of not
understanding that the agent was representing both parties. The
claimants in the pending case are seeking the punitive damage of
forfeiture. Those claimants would like the real estate agents
that didn't technically conply with the disclosure requirenent
to disgorge the comm ssions and fees that they earned.

2:37: 05 PM
CHAIR COSTELLO found no further questions or testinony and
cl osed public testinony.

2:37: 24 PM

SENATOR STEVENS notioned to report SB 76 from commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2015



CHAI R COSTELLO announced that wthout objection, SB 76 is
reported fromthe Senate Labor and Commerce Standing Comm ttee.

2:37: 37 PM

There being nothing further to cone before the conmttee,
Senator Costello adjourned the Senate Labor and Comrerce
Standing Commttee at 2:37 p.m

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2015



